
All public business will be conducted by 11:00 p.m. unless waived by a vote of the Commission.   

Any party needing an accommodation contact the Planning & Development Department at (860) 871-3601. 

The Town of Tolland is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Amended Agenda 

Tolland Green Historic District Commission 
21 Tolland Green, Tolland, Connecticut 

Wednesday, February 21, 2024 at 7:00 p.m., via Zoom 

Remote Participation Only 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Election of Officers for the new calendar year 

3. Seating of Alternate(s) 

4. Additions to Agenda 

5. Public Comment - Any person wishing to ask a question, make a comment or put forward a 

suggestion for any item or matter other than a public hearing item. (Two minute limit) 

6. Public Hearing(s) 

6.1. HDC #24-01 Certificate of Appropriateness- Request to install PV solar panels, roof-mounted 

installation 13.60kW- 32 panels- not structural upgrades.   

7. Old Business 

8. New Business 

7.1 Consideration of the COA HDC #24-01 at 95 Tolland Green by the Commission, and vote 

thereon 

9. Other Business 

10. Correspondence 

11. Approval of Minutes – November 29, 2023 Special Meeting  

12. Adjournment 

 

 

 

To join the Zoom meeting, either click: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83900638828?pwd=bYwqVekq6NjhG6r7p7IN530pfxvsa9.1 

One tap mobile: +13092053325,,83900638828#,,,,*02212024# US  

Or call: 1-646-876-9923 and input: 

Meeting ID: 839 0063 8828 

Passcode: 02212024 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83900638828?pwd=bYwqVekq6NjhG6r7p7IN530pfxvsa9.1


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Hearing 



 

Legal Notice  

Public Hearing 

 

Tolland Green Historic District Commission 

 

The Tolland Green Historic District Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, 

February 21, 2024, commencing at 7:00 p.m., to hear and discuss the following:    

 

95 Tolland Green – Request to install PV solar panels, roof-mounted installation 13.60kW-32 

panels- not structural upgrades.  

 

A copy of these applications are on file and available for review online: 

https://www.tollandct.gov/historic-district-commission/pages/applications-pending 

 

To be advertised twice in the Journal Inquirer: Thursday, February 8, 2024 and 

       Thursday, February 15, 2024 
 

https://www.tollandct.gov/historic-district-commission/pages/applications-pending


LSmith
Typewritten Text
04/11/2024

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text
nnnn

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text
nnnn

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text
n

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text

LSmith
Typewritten Text
nnnn

LSmith
Typewritten Text











































SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  

TOLLAND GREEN HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

Wednesday, November 29, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

REMOTE MEETING 

 

Public Hearing 

 

1. Call to Order by the chair at 7:00. 

 

2.  Roll Call  

Commissioners: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo, Chair; Ann Deegan, substitute clerk; Celeste 

Senechal, alternate: John Hughes 

Katie Murray, town council liaison 

Guests: Mr. Bailey Brenn (applicant), Reverend Doctor Jeffrey Gallagher, pastor of the 

UCCT, Dr. Fred Day-Lewis, Ms. Cindy Minchune, Rep from AE Solar, Ms. Cheryl 

Randino.  Mrs. Tonja Kelly 

 

3.  Continued discussion of Application for a COA at 45 Tolland Green to install black 

non reflective solar energy collection panels to the south facing roofs on the main church 

and daycare building (on the rear property of church).  

 

Mr. Brenn discussed the new configuration of the panels as seen in the revised material 

included in the Special agenda meeting packet for the November 29, 2023, meeting of the 

TGHDC.  It states that there would no longer be panels installed on the main church 

building. According to Ms. Cindy Minchune, there will be 75 panels on a freestanding 

structure at the rear of the church property.  It is beyond the purview of the historic 

district and will not be seen from the road.  There will be a fence around this structure 

and a buffer zone with foliage added.  There will also be 26 solar panels located on the 

backside west-facing roofs and one south-facing roof that will not be visible from the 

street.   

 

4.  Neighbor Comments: 

 Mrs. Tonja Kelly 64 Tolland Green, spoke in support of the solar project at the 

UCCT.  She stated that she has lived in town for 44 years and on the Green for 32.  Mrs. 

Kelly wrote a letter declaring her support for the solar project, which was to be included 

in the October minutes and was not.  I will now be added.   

 

 

Alternate commissioner, Mr. Hughes stated that he was hopeful that the Commission 

would now be able to accommodate the church in this project.   

 

The letters received since the November 15th meeting that are in the revised meeting 

packet for the special meeting of the TGHDC on November 29th should be included in 

the minutes of the November 29, 2023, special meeting. There were 15 letters received, 

10 in support and 5 opposed.  



 

5. Motion to close the public hearing at 7:14 by C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan.  Vote: 

unanimous.  

The Regular meeting was called to order at 7:14.   

1. Roll Call:  Same as above. 

2. Motion to accept the UCCT proposal as presented in the revised special meeting 

packet to place a solar free-standing structure on the rear of their property outside the 

TGHD which will not be visible from the road and will be fenced in with plantings to 

further obscure view from the street.  There will also be 26 additional panels on west 

facing roofs and one south facing roof, none of which will be visible.  There will be no 

panels placed on the main roof of the church per material found in the updated agenda of 

the special public hearing of the TGHDC.  By C. Senechal 2nd A. Deegan   Vote: 

unanimous 

3.  Old Business 

3.1 proposed sidewalk on the Green.  According to our liaison, the preliminary 

findings seem to indicate that there is no problem with the project going forward as 

proposed by the town manager and town council as the archeological study did not find 

anything problematic.   

4. Miscellaneous:   

4.1 Vice chair will be retiring.  New officers will be discussed and voted on at a 

later meeting. This retirement will create a vacancy and the commission was reminded 

by our liaison that the Town Council is in charge of appointing and approving all new 

members.   

5.  Motion to approve the revised minutes of the October 18, 2023, TGHDC meeting with 

the letters in support and against the solar panels to be included. The letter from Mrs. 

Tonja Kelly in support of the panels should be included. By C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan 

vote unanimous.   

6.  Motion to approve the minutes of the November 15, 2023, TGHDC. By C. Senechal, 

2nd A. Deegan vote unanimous. 

 

7. Motion to adjourn at 7:24 by C. Senechal, 2nd A. Deegan   vote unanimous 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ann Deegan, Substitute Clerk  

 

 





1

Laura Smith

From: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo < >
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 8:07 PM
To: Laura Smith; Celeste Senechal; Ann Deegan; Michael McGee 

( ; John Hughes ; Jim 
Paquin

Cc: Kathy Bach; Mariah B
Subject: [EXTERNAL]Fw: solar panels

Hi Laura, 
I have a few more neighbor letters to add to our Special Meeting packet in addition to the one I sent you 
Saturday from Hollie Barna.  
Thanks for help, 
Jodie 
 

From: Stella Demand   
Sent: Sunday, November 26, 2023 4:32 PM 
To:   
Subject: solar panels  
  
As residents of the Tolland Green, we hope to preserve the historicity of our neighborhood.  We are 
encouraging the Historic District Commission to decline any request that would degrade the historic aesthetic, 
the degree to which we feel would be acceptable if the installation were limited to the less prominent parts of 
the structure.  We believe the church is a beautiful building, and is perhaps the most iconic component of our 
neighborhood.  We hope the parties can come to an agreement by which the historical integrity of the 
neighborhood is preserved far into the future. 
Thank you for considering our input. 
Phil and Stella Demand 
81 Tolland Green 



1

Laura Smith

From: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo 
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 8:08 PM
To: Laura Smith; Jim Paquin; Ann Deegan; Celeste Senechal; Michael McGee 

( ; John Hughes )
Cc: Mariah B; Kathy Bach
Subject: [EXTERNAL]Fw: UCCT solar panels

Here is another letter for our packet. 
Jodie 
 

From: Craig Surber   
Sent: Sunday, November 26, 2023 7:50 PM 
To: Jodie Coleman‐Marzialo  > 
Subject: Re: UCCT solar panels  
  
As a former resident of the historic district I do not like the idea. I believe it will take away from the 
historical feel of the green. All these types of proposal will eventually ruin the historic feel of the green. I feel it 
is important to maintain and preserve the green before we have gone to far.  
Craig Surber 
 

[Sent from the all new AOL app for iOS]Sent from the all new AOL app for iOS 
 
On Saturday, November 25, 2023, 3:54 PM, Jodie Coleman-Marzialo < > wrote: 

The United Congregational Church would like to install solar panels on the main roof of the 
church toward the back. As a previous resident of the HD do you have a comment please. We 
referred to the comments from 2018 and are reaching out for comments again. Our continued 
PH is next Wednesday Nov. 29th. Please let me know.  
Happy Thanksgiving, 
Jodie  



1

Laura Smith

From: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo < >
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 8:13 PM
To: Laura Smith; Jim Paquin; Ann Deegan; Celeste Senechal; Michael McGee 

( ); John Hughes )
Cc: Mariah B; Kathy Bach
Subject: [EXTERNAL]Fw: Solar Panels for UCCT

And here is another please for our meeting packet. I believe we have 24 hours to post the agenda and 
materials for a Special Meeting. Thanks for your help. 
Jodie 

From: Denis Deegan   
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 2:12 PM 
To:  > 
Subject: Solar Panels for UCCT  
  
Jodie, 
 
Please allow me to express my absolute objection to "any" use of visible solar panels on "any" property located 
on or adjacent to the historically designated Tolland Green. Just because one Tolland Green resident played the 
delay game to side step the Historic District Commission's purview, doesn't then make that outcome precedent 
for all other property owners.  
 
This is a very pivotal point in terms of preserving the intentions of prior generations to maintain Tolland as an 
aesthetically traditional old New England town. If the creation of the Tolland Historic Commission and its 
chartered intentions to protect the integrity of the Tolland Green can no longer be maintained because of 
demographic new-comers who fail to understand its purpose, then it's time for everyone to admit that Tolland is 
ready to walk away from its historical identity. Placing solar panels on the main structure of UCCT as they have 
proposed will create an extreme eyesoar in addition to significantly degridating the historical value of the Town 
Green. 
 
While I am committed to supporting steps to allow the environment to overcome the proliferation of 
hydrocarbon pollutants, let's take into consideration the full perspective. First and foremost, what steps are all of 
these concerned individuals taking to minimize their own personal carbon footprint. What type of vehicle(s) do 
they drive? How many miles a day / week / year do they drive? Do they take mass transportation? How efficient 
are their heating systems? Do they operate wood burning stoves or fireplaces? Have their homes been brought 
up to the highest efficiency standards? It's extraordinarily easy for "concerned individuals" to support measures 
that either shift the burden upon others and / or directly benefit their own pocketbooks.  
 
It is also critical to keep in mind that advancements in alternative energy are dramatically evolving with each 
passing year. We can simply compare the solar panels of a few years ago with those of today to see both the 
aesthetic and energy generation improvements that have occurred. One can only imagine what advancements 
will transpire over the next 5 to 10 years that may potentially render today's solar panels obsolete. Why is it so 
critical for UCCT to take this action now? 
 
In closing, two final thoughts. Only "residents" of Tolland should have any involvement in decisions relating to 
the maintenance of The Green's historical purity.  And, when part of a property owner's argument / solution 



2

involves enhancing or maintaining trees or other plantings to mitigate a proposal that violates the intent of The 
Tolland Green's historical designation, then they must be legally bound to that solution. Allowing property 
owners to later walk away from their commitment, as at least one other Tolland Green resident has, should 
place them in violation of Town Ordinance and thus forfeiture of their CofO. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Denis J. Deegan 
689 Tolland Stage Road 



1

Laura Smith

From: Jodie Coleman-Marzialo < >
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 9:47 PM
To: Laura Smith; Jim Paquin; Ann Deegan; Celeste Senechal; Michael McGee 

( ); John Hughes 
Cc: Mariah B; Kathy Bach
Subject: [EXTERNAL]Fw: Solar panels

Hi Laura, 
Here is one more neighbor comment for the HDC Special Meeting packet. 
Thanks,  
Jodie 
 

From: Heather & Matt   
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 9:20 PM 
To:   
Subject: Solar panels  
  
Hi Jody - Here's a statement you can include for the meeting about the solar panels on the Congregational 
church: 
 
In considering the installation of solar panels on the Congregational church, we believe any decision should 
prioritize preserving the visual integrity of our historic neighborhood. Any placement should be discreet and not 
only maintain the historical appearance of the Green, but consider the potential impact on neighboring 
properties.  
 
Heather and Matt Ferretti 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Section 6.1 - Public Hearing - 95 Tolland Green
	Section 11 - Approval of Minutes - November 29, 2023



